CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the **Staffing Committee** held on Friday, 13th January, 2012 at Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ

PRESENT

Councillor D Topping (Chairman) Councillor R Domleo (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors W Fitzgerald, D Flude, S Hogben, P Mason and B Murphy

Unions

Olga Kokkinis – UNISON Craig Nicholson – UNISON Lesley Hall – UNISON Kevin Yoxall – UNISON T Caffrey – UNISON Len Shand – UNITE

Officers

Erika Wenzel, Chief Executive Paul Bradshaw, Head of HR & Organisational Development Julie Davies, HR Strategy & OD Manager Bronwen MacArthur-Williams, Corporate Health & Safety Manager Suzanne Antrobus, Legal Services Ben Whitter, Senior Organisational Development Officer Amy Rowe, Apprentice Rachel Graves, Democratic Services

37 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies were received from Councillor J Jackson and Phil Mason.

38 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor D Flude declared a personal interest as she was a retired member of Unison.

39 PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME/OPEN SESSION

There were no members of the public present.

40 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 20 October 2011 be confirmed as a correct record, subject to the following amendment:

24 Apologies for Absence

'Olga Kikkinis' be amended to read 'Olga Kokkinis'.

41 APPRENTICESHIP SCHEME

The Committee received a presentation on the Council's Apprenticeship Scheme - the 'A' Team, from Ben Whitter, Senior Organisational Development Officer, and apprentice Amy Rowe.

The Apprenticeship Scheme provided people aged 16+ with work based training and development experiences across a wide range of council services. Since the scheme had begun in 2010 it had given more than 80 young people the opportunity to work in various council services. There were currently 65 young people in placements across the Council. The Council was developed partnership working with the Princes Trust, Cheshire Fire & Rescue Service, Wulvern Housing, Total People and YMCA. The Scheme had just launched apprenticeships in the Leisure industry with 21 places being available.

The 'A' Team had recently attended an event at Manchester City's Etihad Stadium to share its success and best practice model with other councils in the north.

Apprentice Amy Rowe explained that she had joined the Council as an apprentice in May 2011. She had completed her A-levels at school but had not wanted to go to university and was looking for an alternative when she found about the Apprenticeship Scheme. She was currently working in Marketing in the Communications Team and also worked on the A Team marketing. She was working towards her NVQ Level 3 and attended Macclesfield College one day a week.

The Committee thanked Ben and Amy for their presentation and congratulated them on the work that had been done to establish the scheme and make it successful. The Trade Union representatives echoed this and asked if there was anything they could do to help and support the scheme.

42 HR REPORT

The Head of Human Resources and Organisational Development, aided by the HR Strategy & OD Manager and Corporate Health & Safety Manager, presented a report which provided a general update on Human Resource issues, including Health & Safety, Organisational Development, HR Delivery and HR Policy and Reward.

Health and Safety

It was reported that the Corporate Health and Safety Service had delivered 38 training courses during Quarter 2. The courses provided included First Aid, Manual & Safer Handling and on PRIME.

A programme of Health & Safety Reviews for Children and Families (nonschool) had commenced in September 2011. An initial Review was completed at a residential centre with very encouraging results on health & safety management. Inspections had also taken place of services and locations in the Places Directorate, Adult Services and Leisure Services

In Quarter 2, 1365 accidents/incidents were entered into PRIME, of which 87 were RIDDOR reportable to the Health & Safety Executive. These figures represented a drop of 5% for the total numbers of accidents reported and 9% for RIDDOR reports when compared to Quarter 1 of the current financial year.

It was not possible to draw meaningful comparisons between last year and this year's Quarter 2 figures as the electronic accident recording system – PRIME, was still in its test phase and was only properly rolled out across the organisation from December 2010, meaning that many accidents continued to be recorded locally and were not collated into one central database as now. Quarter 3 would provide a more meaningful comparison.

Organisational Development

To broaden development opportunities for staff and maximise scarce resources, collaborative opportunities with other public sector organisations within the sub-region were being progressed and included a programme to develop leadership skills for managers.

Work was underway to refresh the *aspire* values and to develop a framework for mangers and staff to define "how" successful people approach their work and achieve great things. This behavioural framework would from part of the performance development process from 1 April 2012.

HR Delivery

The HR Delivery team had been heavily involved in providing data and carrying out consultation to support the implementation of harmonisation. The Team had also worked on a number of potential TUPE situations, both into and out of, Cheshire East Council. These included the provision of information and consultation with staff, unions, and external councils on the transfer out of services and assets to town and parish councils.

HR Policy and Reward

The revised package of terms and conditions had been implemented with effect from 1 November 2011, with the main changes affecting pay in December 2011. The reassessment of applications for the Regular Car Users Allowance had been completed and the results would be implemented in January 2012 pay.

The current contract for the supply of agency workers comes to an end on 31 March 2012. Work had been undertaken to re-let the contract on a joint basis with Cheshire West and Chester Council. A decision would be taken at the Cabinet meeting on 9 January 2011 on the new supplier.

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted.

43 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED:

That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during the consideration if the following item pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local Government Act 1972 on the grounds that they involved the disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 and public interest would not be served in publishing this information.

44 ITEMS REQUESTED BY THE TRADE UNIONS

The Trade Union representatives raised issues in relation to the following items:

- Devolution of Services/Asset Transfer
- Trade Union Secondment.

The meeting commenced at 2.05 pm and concluded at 3.35 pm

Councillor D Topping (Chairman)